CAPSULE SUMMARY

BA- 586

Gunpowder Baptist Church
20075 Freeland Road
Freeland, Baltimore County
1887

Private

The Gunpowder Baptist Church dates to alate 19th century period of development in the smal community of Middletown in
the Sixth Digtrict of Batimore County. Constructed in 1887, the building is representative of the many Gothic Revivd style
churches built in smal towns and rurdl communities throughout Baltimore County in the late 19th and early 20th centuries.
By the mid-19th century, Middletown had aready begun to thrive, for the 1850 county atlas indicates that the town included,
in addition to severd residences dong Middletown Road between Fredland and Oakland Road, atavern and schoolhouse. As
early as 1850, a church was located on the southeast corner of the intersection of Middletown Road and Fredland Road. This
building was not, however, the extant Gunpowder Baptist Church. The earlier building, of unknown denomination, remained
on the lat through the 1870s, for it continues to be represented in the adas from that period. 1t was not until 1877 that the
present church was erected. Nevertheless, the cemetery behind the church dates from the existence of the firgt building. The
Middletown community hasretained its rural character through the late 20th century.

Congructed on the southeast corner of the intersection of Middletown Road and Fredand Road, the Gunpowder Baptist
Church is aone-and-a-haf-story, three-bay-wide wood frame building clad in vinyl siding. The church festures afront gable
roof clad in date tiles and a solid random rubble stone foundation. The facade, or southwest elevation, is dominated by a two-
gory, one-bay-square wood frame bell tower with a steeply pitched pyramidal roof clad in wood shingles. Entry into the
building is through the first story of the tower, which contains a paneled double-lesf wood door with a pointed-arch transom
filled with leaded stained glass. Flanking the entry are two lancet-arched multi-light leaded stained glass windows.  All
facade openings on the three-bay-deep building have vinyl surrounds and sills. Circa 1930, atwo-story, four-bay-wide wood
frame addition clad in vinyl siding on a cinderblock foundation was built onto the southeast elevation of the church. Located
northeast of the church is a cemetery comprising approximately 700 grave markers arranged in eighteen rows that extend
pardld to the facade of the church and Middletown Road. The cemetery, which dates to 1837, and most of the 19th century
grave markers are marble upright dabs. Some findy dressed date grave markers are located within the cemetery. A one-
gory, circa 1980 wood frame shed is aso located on the property. The one-bay-square structure, which is capped by a front

gableroof clad in asphalt shingles, isclad in pressed vertica board and sits on a poured concrete dab foundation.



Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Gunpowder Baptist Church
other
2. Location
street and number 20075 Freeland Road
city, town Freeland
county Baltimore County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Gunpowder Baptist Church

street and number 20075 Fredland Road
city, town Freeland state MD

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore County Courthouse liber

city, town Towson tax map 11 tax parcel 82

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other;

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function

— district — _public __ ™ _agriculture __Jandscape

X buildinqg(s) X private —.___commerceftrade  ___ recreation/culture

— __structure both ____defense _X_religion

—__site ______domestic social

—  object —  education —  transportation
__ funerary — _work in progress
____government —.__unknown
____health care — vacant/not in use
____industry — —other:

Inventory No. BA- 586

not for publication

__ Vicinity

telephone Not Available
Zip code 21053

Not Available folio Not Available
tax ID number 0607083025

Resource Count

Contributing Noncontributing
—J J buildings
—-3——  —  — sites
structures
objects
—1 Total

Number of Contributing Resources
previously listed in the Inventory
1



7. Description Inventory No. BA- -586

Condition
excellent deteriorated
X good ruins
_ fair altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

Constructed in 1887 on the southeast corner of the intersection of Middletown Road and Freeland Road, the
Gothic Reviva style Gunpowder Baptist Church is a one-and-a-half-story, three-bay-wide wood frame building
clad invinyl siding. The church features a front gable roof clad in date tiles and a solid random rubble stone
foundation. The facade, or southwest elevation, is dominated by a two-story, one-bay-square wood frame bell
tower with a steeply pitched pyramidal roof clad in wood shingles. Entry into the building is through the first
story of the tower, which contains a paneled double-leaf wood door with a pointed-arch transom filled with
leaded stained glass. Flanking the entry are two lancet-arched multi-light leaded stained glass windows. Al
facade openings on the three-bay-deep building have vinyl surrounds and sills. Circa 1930, atwo-story, four-
bay-wide wood frame addition clad in vinyl siding on a cinderblock foundation was built onto the southeast
elevation of the church.

Located northeast of the church is a cemetery comprising approximately 700 grave markers arranged in
eighteen rows that extend parallél to the facade of the church and Middletown Road. The cemetery, which
dates to 1837, and most of the 19" century grave markers are marble upright slabs. Some finely dressed slate
grave markers are located within the cemetery.

A one-story, circa 1980 wood frame shed is also located on the property. The one-bay-square structure, which
is capped by afront gable roof clad in asphalt shingles, is clad in pressed vertical board and sits on a poured
concrete dab foundation.



8. Significance

Period

_ 1600-1699
~ 1700-1799
X 1800-1899
X 1900-1999
2000-

Specific dates
Construction dates

Evaluation for:

Areas of Significance

___agriculture

___archeology

X architecture

_art

___commerce

___communications

___community planning
conservation

1887-present

1887

National Register

Inventory No. BA- 586

Check and justify below

economics health/medicine performing arts
education industry philosophy
engineering invention politics/government
entertainment/ landscape architecture X religion

recreation law science
ethnic heritage literature social history
exploration/ maritime history transportation
settlement military other:

Architect/Builder  Unknown

Maryland Register

X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.)

The Gunpowder Baptist Church dates to a late 19™ century period of development in the small community of
Middletown in the Sixth District of Baltimore County. Constructed in 1887, the building is representative of
the many Gothic Reviva style churches built in small towns and rural communities throughout Baltimore
County in the late 19" and early 20" centuries. By the mid-19" century, Middletown had already begun to
thrive, for the 1850 county atlas indicates that the town included, in addition to severa residences along
Middletown Road between Freeland and Oakland Road, atavern and schoolhouse. As early as 1850, a church
was located on the southeast corner of the intersection of Middletown Road and Freeland Road. This building
was not, however, the extant Gunpowder Baptist Church. The earlier building, of unknown denomination,
remained on the lot through the 1870s, for it continues to be represented in the atlas from that period. It was not
until 1877 that the present church was erected. Nevertheless, the cemetery behind the church dates from the
existence of the first building. The Middletown community has retained its rural character through the late 20"

century.



9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. BA- 586

Atlas of Baltimore County, Maryland,. Philadelphia, PA: G. M. Hopkins, 1877.

Baltimore County Historic Inventory.

Brooks, Ned A. and Eric G. Rockel. A History of Baltimore County. Towson, MD: Friends of the Towson Library, Inc., 1979.

Map of Baltimore County. Philadelphia, PA: G. W. Bromley, 1915.

Scharf, J. Thomas. History of Baltimore City and County From the Earliest Period to the Present Day: Including Biographical
Sketches of Their Representative Men. Philadelphia, PA: Louis H. Everts, 1881. Reprinted by Higginson Book
Company, Salem, MA.

Sidney, J. C. Map of the City and County of Baltimore, Maryland, from Original Surveys. Baltimore, MD: James M. Stephens,
1850

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property .10 Acre
Acreage of historical setting Unknown
Quadrangle name New Freedom Quadrangle scale: 1:24,000

Verbal boundary description and justification

Since its construction in 1887, the Gunpowder Baptist Church has been associated with the three acres
known as tax parcel 82 of map 11 located in the Baltimore County Tax Assessor's office.

11. Form Prepared by

namef/title A. McDonald and A. Didden, Architectural Historians

organization EHT Traceries, Incorporated date May 4, 2001
street & number 1121 5th Street NW telephone  202.393.1199
city or town Washington state DC

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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9A-586

GUNPOADER  BAPTIST CHURCH - 1887 - SE corner of

M ddl etown and O d Freeland Roads. (20075 Freel and
Road) . Church was fornmed in 1806 by 88 nenbers who
signed a covenant at Tipton's Meeting House in
M ddl et own. The congregation denounced slavery in 1815
at the cost of lost nenbership. The Baptists net in
Tipton's Meeting House until they acquired a lot in
1853. The present structure, the second church, was
built in 1887. Frane and clapboard building in
Victorian Gothic; slate-covered gable roof; central

entrance spire; open belfry with inbricated shingles at
base. Bracketi ng under the eaves. H p-roofed hall for
offices and kitchen attached. Stai ned glass w ndows
were added in 1940's after two violent hail stormns. A
new church of 1974 on the opposite side of M ddletown
Road permtted the 1887 church to be converted to a
youth chapel and fellowship hall; the oak pews were
renoved, the interior carpeted. The adj oi ning cenetery
contains a non-sectarian section l|eft by the Dorsey
famly for the free use of any citizens of the area.
(dd church reported torn down in B.C Uni on,
Cct ober 2, Cctober, 1886.)




